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The Story of Valencia, California,
and its rancho background

By
W. W. Robinson

Tfee, 1647

1769

Spanish occupation of California is begun,
and Spain's first land expedition -- on its
Journey north from San Diego -- crosses the
area that became Rancho San Frencisco, '
which today includes within its boundzaries
the community of Valencia

Lingering glouds of dust hovered over the c;valcade
that made up this first expeditipn——thé_Portola/Party, so called
because 1t was headed by Gaspar de Portola/of the Spaﬁish Army.
Leaders, scouts, two priests, mounted soldiers, muleteers, and
a packtrain of a hundred loaded mules and spare ahimals, they
had been taking a generally coastal route with Moﬁte%ey as the
objective. After leaving the Los Angeles, the Westwood, and
the San Fernando‘Valley areas, the party had crossedApainfully

stecp mountains at San Fernmando Pass. Then they found themselves
1 : :
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.willows and cottonwoods."

.

in a small valley in which, éff the trail, was a.villaée of Indians.

The eipedition now was actualiy in what was to be called
Rancho San F;ancisco. The members spent August 8, 9, and 10 (of
1769) in and crossing this area of curving hills and oak-dotted
valleys. | '

AFoftunately several members of the Portola Party kept
diaries or made descriptive notes, the most vivid and expliéit of
which are those of Father Juan drégpi, the f;iqst, and of Miguel
Costanso{ the engineer.

From these accounts we learn that the wﬁite party en-
joyed the hospitality and bounty of the Indians of this first

village. These Indian hosts had sent messengers ahead to invite

«

the visitors and had prepared a feast of "seeds, acorns and nuts.”

Then they ﬁrovided guides to take them to a "charming valley" which

Crespi named theJ"Santa Clara."” Here was a river with plenty of

vater running though_hmoderately wide valley, well grown with |

. / -
On the bank of the river the.Portola Party found "a

- .

populous village in which the people lived without any cover" and
. - . /
"fenced in like a corral." The soldiers promptly named it "Rancheria

del Corral.”

Immediétely.on the party's arrival the villagers brought

'fpfth for the visitors "many baskets of different kinds of seeds,

and a sort of sweet preserve like little raisins, and another re-
sembling honeycomb, very sweet and purging and made of the dew wvhich

2 .



" Crespi commented that the area would

sticks to the rccd'grass.
" make a suitable site for a mission, since there was good lands, two
large arvoyos of water, and five large §illages cl&se together.

Next day the vhite party rested but weré visited again
by a multitude of good~tatured and afféctionate Indians bringiné pre-
sents of food‘. They passed-along the information that the way to
the coast "was level and easy of access," but that the road inland
fwas very mountainous and rough.” The Indians happened to be |
celebrating a weddiﬂg and brought forth the bride--"the most dréssed
up among them all in the way she was pzinted and with her strings
of beads." - |

The following day, August 10, the Pgrtola/Party took the
Santa Clara Valley west—soufhwes;~—as advised by gheir Indian frieﬁds.
They camped that night in the Camﬁlos area, which was in thé ves terly
bart of Rancho Saa Francisco, and ultimately proceeded‘to the coast.

[Thé Indians they had met wére of the Alliklik group;of
the Shoshonecans, acéording to ethnologist A. L. Kroeber. Ultimately,

as the party continued down the valley and up the coast it woﬁld be

T

in Chumash Indian territory.)

~
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1797

Mission San Fernando 1s founded, with a
Jurisdiction that would extend not only
over the San Fernando Valley but to the
- " north and northwest over the Indian
villages and the land areas of Rancho
- : San Francisco

Early in August of 1795 an exploring party set out. from
San Buenaventur# Mission to find_a_new mi§§ion site on the foad to
San Gabriel. Seeking good land, abundant wafer{'and Indians, the
missionary fathers sglected the present'éite of Mission,Sén Fernando

‘in the upper half of the San Fernando Valiey or, as it was then

called, Encino (0Oak) Valley.

Founding ceremonies took place on September 8, 177, with

/ s )
Father Fermin Francisco Lasuen in charge. The name "San Fernando =

.

Rey" was given the Mission after Ferdinand ITI of Spsain.

Tqﬂheib thefnew establishéent, other éouthern Czlifornia
missipn seh£ cattle,.hbrses, mules and sheep. Crops werevﬁut ini A
femporary church and other buildings were erected.‘ As converts and

L3

cattle increased, the Mission's sway extended beyond San Fernando

2= .

Valley and to the north and northwest. Indians baptised came,

/ i .
ultimately, from nearly 200 Indian rancherias or villages, including

those in the Santa Clara Valley such &as Sespe, Piru, Camulos, and

R

Chaguayabit.
Church historian Zephyrin Engelhardt, writing the Mission'
story and drawing upon carliest official reports, ieccords that in

T
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1804 "at the Rancho de San Francisco Javier or Chaguayabit™ a build-

‘ing was erected to provide for a granary and other necessary rooms.

This entry indicates that wheat—growing on the rancho began at an
early date. Furthermore, it reveals an early use of "San F;ancisco"{
as the rancho's'naﬁe. Engelhardt finds the rancho calied variously
by the priests, over the years, "Rancho de San Francisco Javier,"
"Rancgo de San Francisco," "Rancho San Francisco," or merely‘"San

Francisco."
Probably the key to the origin of the rancho's nzme is

contained in the testimony of a one-time mayordomc of the Mission,

/ : .
Pedro Lopez, given before the United States Land Commission on April

12, 1854, He had known the area since he was a child, vhen the

rancho wvas in the possession of the Mission of San Fernando. He

described its location and referred to the boundary "Arroyo Piru

<

which comes out"qf the mountains on the north and runs to the River

San Francisco vhich is also called Santa Clara.". Like so many

other mission-held ranchos, the necessary naming of rivers by the
priests gave adjoining lands their names. If the river was "San >

Francisco," the adjoining rancho would naturally take that name.

So, too, a smaller canyon or stream emptying into it would logically

“receive the name of "San Francisqﬁito" (the Little San Francisco)

~-as happened in this case;

Depending on the availability of water, crops of wheat,
beans, "and corn were grown. The fertile land of Raﬁého San Francisco
was early cqvetedvby non-Mission whites, for in 1804 the priesfs

3
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"protested vigorously and successfully against the granting of
éamulos Rancho to one Francigco Avila."

Séldiers at the Presidio of Santa Barbara were in_the
habit'of'asking Mission S;n Fernando for various kinds of suﬁblies.
On September of 1821 Father Ibarra at San Fernando gave the réply
to Captain Joéé/de la Guerra og Santa Barbara vhen he asked for
corn: MI just came from the'kancho de San Francisco. Things are
as I said. There are only sixty or éeventy fanééas. Rabbits aﬁd
hares ana worm; have done damage to the crop." Llater iﬁ the month
he notified de la Guerra that fifteen pack mules would leave the
-Rancho de San Francisco with thirty fané;as of corn fqr San.
ﬁuenaventura, to'be-fdrwarded to the Santa Barbara presidio. VWhen
asked in 1822 for twenty-five pairé of shoes,.Father Ibarra replied -
th%t they would be made., To 2 request in 1825 for $300 worth ;f séap,
he said they had only thifty or fprty dollars vorth, éor none hadA-;
been made du?inh.the_yghr.-~The good father felt that:tﬁé éoldicgs
at Santa Barbara ought to work and raise grain and not live on the
toil of the neophytes, especially when there vas a shortage of-Indian

labor, the Irndians coming and. going as they pleased. R

L N
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~Ibarra was askWed to swear allegiance to-the new government and -

Spanish rule in California gives way to Mexican

While Mexico was revolting against Spain, life at

Mission San Fernando-continued its pastoral way. 1In 1822, the

year that California was notified of Mexico's successful revolt,

-

there were-lool neophytes living at the Mission.

) On April 11, 1822 the capital city of Monterey sworé
allegiance to the new govermment. The banner of Spain gave'way
to the HMexican imperiai flagi_ The Mexican Empire, however, 'was
short-lived, and in the fol%owing year Emperor.Itu;bide abdicated
and a federal republic was established. Califormia land'tﬁat,
under the prévisions df the Laws of the Indies, had beén vested - -

in the King of Spain was now owned by the Mexican Nation.
: ' / D

Presently, under Mexican Governor Exheandia, Father

/

i

to make a report on the extent of Missior San Fernando's lands
and of its holdings in livestock. Father Ibarra complied and .
presented a report that showed something of the Mission's .- .

activities in Rancho San Francisco.



1834

Secularization comes to Mission San

San Fernando; Liecutenant Antonio del
Valle is asked to take charge of the
Mission estates and, in the following
year, is named as mayordomo or admin-

istrator.

The movement to secularize California mission;;—— that
is, to transfer them from Church to lay ddministration -- had been
long under way. It reached San Fernando in Octbbef of 1834. |

Antonio del Valle had come Lo California in 1819 as a
soidier and continued to carry on both a.military and controversial
political career. he went to Los Angeles in 1832 and to;San |
Fernando upon secdlarization. Ag mayordomo o% the Mission, at an
annuzl salary of $800, he served th?eeryears. He inventoried the:

.

Mission's property. He enumerated the Mission's Indian population

-

in 1835 as 541 persons, a large decrease. He also became well
' H

acquainted Qith Raﬁcﬁo San Francisco, for in the year of the

inventory he wrote to Governor Figueroa that, to prevent the |
stealing of cattle and hotses by Christian fndiéns, it wou}@ bé
necessary to install a«corpéral in Rancho San Francisco. Mean-

while, Farther Ibarra, Hisatisfied with life at a secularized

mission, left for Sodo%a.

.-



839

Rancho San -Francisco is granted to
Antonio del Valle

‘Secularization-of mission—heldwestatgs in Caliéornia
céused a land rush.

Oné of the successful seekers of a grant from thg
Mexican Nation was Don Antonio who had locdked with longing eyes
on Rancho San Francisco while he was the Mission's méyordomo.
Be.petitioned the Governor and, in éompiiance with one of the
several requirements of the land iaws of 1828, submitted a diseno
or map of the eleven:square league area he wanted. It was made
by his friend Pablo'de la Guerra of Sania Barbéra; Don Pablo,
called on jn later years to indentiff this map, said he made it
in 1837 or 1838 at Ddﬁ Antonio's.request. ‘

On {aﬂuary 22, 1839, Gove;nor Juap B, Alvarado.granted
the rancho ﬁo;Citizén‘Antonio del Valle. He signed the document:
at Santa Barbara. It was in the usual formality and, like the

other grants, was the gift of the Government-

The New owner in the same yéar took up residenceﬂiﬁ
ﬁancho San Francisco, with his wife, Dona Jacoba Feliz -- Qho
was tﬁc daughter of Don Pedro LJ%ez -- and his children, excéét
Ygnacio. Ygnacio, son by an earlier marriage, was in.his early
'thirtics and since 1825 had been active in military,'political,
and civic affairs.

Don An£onio adapted ;o his use the a@obeAStructuFe built

9
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as a_grana;y in 1804. It was at the foot of a low fangé of hills

and close to and an the southside of the Santa Clara River. He

cultivated portions of his land and stocked others with his cattle.
Don Antonio had only two and a half years to enjoy

this rancho. "~He died on Junc 1, 1841, intéstate, with the estate

going to the widow and children.

Two years later Dona Jacoba, who owned one third of the

eétafe, was living in the ranch house with a new husband, Don Jose

Salazar.

Don Ygnacio, greatly excited about Rancho ?an francisco,
set about to acquire a major ;hare in the rancho and the right to
build a ranch Eome of his own -- the famed "Canulos,™ in £he‘wést
‘end of the rancho. For many‘yea;s he maintained his Los Ahgeles
activities,.  however, where his héme_on the east side of the7P1aza..
was a socigl ané policital center. Don Ygnacio held 2 seriqs of
public offices, in both Mexicén and:Aﬁérican regimes.. He was'.;
Los Angeles Coungy's firsf recorder'and a representative in the |
California légiSIature. Not until 1861 would he move permanéntly

- ’

to Camulos.

10 -
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California's first gold rush takes place on
' Rancho San Francisco

Francisco Ld%ez of Los Angeles, the uncle of Dona

Jacoba, often spent a week or more at his niece's Rancho San

Francisco where he rented a section for his own stock. He was a
man of varied interests and had taken a course at a mining college
in Mexico City, according to one of his lineal descendants,

/ . .
Francisca Lopez Belderrain (writing in the November, 1930, issue

of.Touring Topics.)

One day, March 9, 1842, Don Francisco was riding up

one of Rancho San .Francisco's canyons, now called Placerita Canyon.

He was either on a hunting trip or was rounaing up stock -- the
stories vary. At noon-time he énd his companion stoﬁped bene;th:
an oak for lunch and to iést. Hhile doing so, Lo;ez tooﬁ his .
knife and dhé'gp somg’wild onions. Attached to the rooés was 5

nugget of gold. TFurther digging revealed other nuggets.

"There was great excitement that night in the del Valle *

e .
-

ranch house. The next morning the family rode tc Mission San
Fernaﬁdo to teli the good newvs. Francisco;s brother, Don Pedro,
was then mayordomo at the Missioﬂ; The following day the two
brothers and some friends rode into Los Angeles to noétify govern-
mental authorities. |

In such manner California's first gold rush was launched.

1
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For several yecars prospectors worked successfully in Placerita

. ]

Canyon and in near-by Feliciano Canyon. Many of the miners came
from Sonora. Don Abel Stearns, Southern.California merchant and
ranchero, sent atsampling.of gold (via Alfred Robinson) to the
United States mint in Philidelphia wherg it was coinea,.with a
value of ovér'$19 an ounce, ‘The first Plgcerita gold sent to
Monterey was made into earrings for the ﬁife'of Governor Alvarado
and into a ring for the Governor's daughter. %he greatgrandaughte?
of Antonio del Valle -- the actress Lucretia del Vallé Grady,
and wife of diplomat Henry Francis Grady, -- many yea;s léter
wore proudly a bracelet of R;ncho San Francisco gold.

The Placerita gold fever died out in the 18503; éna
California's first gold rush ——.though not the first gold dis-
covery -- became a golden memory. (There have'beeu_mahy féports
»of gold 5eing fﬁund at various plaées in Caiifornia prior %9. .
1842, and the wrecords of the United;égétés Mint at Phiiadelphia;
show gold bullio? from Caiifornia_deposited there January 30, 153é

by the New York brokerage firm of Hussey & Mackay.)

12 -



1847

Anerican soldiers, under John C. FrcéontL
pass through Rancho San Francisco .on their
way to Los Angeles -- in the closing Calif-
ornia _phase of the war with Mexico.

’

Fremont's buckskin batéllion gf mounted and bearded
riflemen, witﬁ Indian allieg,—had set out from Monterey, had
ridden south eérly in January, 1847, hadlﬂaid Mission San Buena-
ventura a visit, and then followed the.Sagta C%éra River valley

inland.

On January 9 and 10, at least, the batallion wes in
" Rancho San Francisco. Edwin Bryant, a volunteer with the Fremont

pafty, writes in his What I Saw in California, that we encamped _ .

this afternoon (January 9) at a rancho, situated on the edge of a
fertile and finely-watered plain of considerable extent, where we

found corn, wvheat, and frijolesJij great abundance. The rancho_
- . 5

was owned by an aged'Californian of commanding and respectable

) ‘ 7/
appearance. Does young Bryant refer to 45-year-old Don Jose

Salazar, husband of Dona Jacoba? On January 10, crossing the
plain "we encamped, about two o'clock, p.m., in the month of a

Ll

‘canada, through which we ascend over a difficult pass in a range

of elevated hills between us and the plain of San Fegnando; A

-

.lgrge nunber of cattlé were collected in the plain and corralled,

to be driven along tomorrow for subsistence.”" On January 11 the
‘ N K3 ) . - A /-
party was at the Mission of San Fernando. On Januzry 13 Fremont

.
L] i

13 L .
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t
went on to Cahuenga to sign the treaty between the Americans and
the Californians -- the latter represented by their military

/ -
commander, "Andres Pico -- which ended the war in California.

In the following year, at Guadalupe Hidalgo, Mexico,
the treaty betveen the gévernments of the United States and Mexico
was signed, ratified, and proclaimed. By it, a huge terfitory,
iné}uding California, became a part of“the United States. So
ended a war, begun in 1846, that had been fought and.won largely

south of the Rio Grande.

-"'
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In the year of California's admission to
the Union as a state, a great drama
climaxes in Rancho San Francisco

California became a state on September 9, 1850, fdllqwing
the adoption of a constitution in 1849.
Very early in 1850 the hospluallty prov1ded by the owners

of Rancho San Francisco saved one group of Forty niner gold- soekers --

marooned in Death Valley -- from death itself.

W. L. Manly tells the story in his classic Death Valley

in '49. He was a member of one of several small groups of wagon-

party immigrants who, seeking a short-cut to California, had land-
ed in Death Vailey, place of "dreadful sandé," "bitter lakes," anc -
“"sunken desolation." Manly and John Rogers were the two~stroﬁges§
menbers of the Bgnnett—Afcane party. Attempting to get relief fo;
the women, éhil@rcn) and othefs of'their companions, who wvere i?
2 weakened and starving cgndition,‘Manly and Rogers left the group,
crossed tvo huﬁdred and fifty miles of forbiddipg deserts and -
mouﬂtains, ;oming finally down Soledad Canyon to a'spur of hills
that overlooked ﬁancho San Francisco. As described.later Ey
Manly: -

"There bef?ge us wvas a beautiful meadow of a

thousand acres, green as a thick carpet of

grass could make it, and shaded with osks,

wide branching and symmetrical, equal to those

of an 01d English park; while all over the low
.mountains that bordered it on the south and

1
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over the broad acres 'of Jluxuriant grass was &
herd of cattle nuambering many hundred if not
thousands ... such a scene of abundance and
rich plenty and comfort bursting thus upon

cour eyes, which for months had seen only the
desolation and sadness of the desert, was like
getting a glimpse of Paradise, and tears of jJoy-
“ran down our faces.".

At-the del Valle ranch house they were given a friendly
reception and obtained horses and food, together with a few oranges
for the children. They retraced their way, re-entered Death Valley,

and heroically brought out their'starving companions. -

16
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persconal property of Rancho San

et

Francisco is made

.It became‘necéssary in 1853 to appraise the properfy
belonging to fwo of Antonio del Valle's children who were then
minors, and who had a fractioﬂal interest in the estate left by
Don Antonio. ?he results are moest interegting, showing current
;alues cf land and of cattle, horses, and sheep;

The appraisal was undertaken by two Angeleons, Antonio
F. Coronel and Manuel C. Rojo. The former was a scholarly man
"and Los Angeles County's first assessor. The latter.was a Peruvian
who combined law practice with editorial work and the Qriting of
poetry for the Los Angeles Star.

The avéragg value of an acre of land in Rancho San
Francisco, the;aépraisers found;‘was 25 cents -- after "taking
inte account thé faét\that.a great portion of it consists in hizls

that are absolutely useless due to their sterility, and some of it

containing good pasture."

In contrast, a Los Angeles city lot, with its improve-
ments, was valued then by the appraisers at $4000.

In 1853 Southern California cattle were bringing high

-prices because of the demand created by Gold Rush mirfers. At an
auction ordered by the Probate Court, it was reported by the
appraisers that steers on Rancho San Francisco brought $20, $25,

A}
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and $30, each; cows $26 cach; bulls $25 and $30 cach; okxen $40
each. TFull grown horses were sold for $40 a piece. Sheep brought

$4 each and lambs $1 each.

"perhaps in the future," added the appraisers, "there

may be some change, either increasi?g or reducing the said prices,

for in this }eépecf there is nothing really stable in our County.”

-

1855

The United States Land Commission approves
the del Valle title to Rancho San Francisco

In 1851 a board of land commissioners had been created
ﬂy the United»States to paés upon land titles granted under
Spanish and Mexican regihcs and to segregate privately éwned land
from ﬁublic dom;in. |

The heirs of Antonidhdel vélle filéd gheir petition in

H
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Septemgcr of 1552, claiming confirmation of title to land in the
Vallcy of the Santa Clara River known by the name of San Franci-
‘sco. Along with it weng pertinent selections from the Mexican
archives; including a c0py.of the Mexican grant itself and of the
diseno or map of the rancho. VLater the dépositions of eminent
~Californians were taken and filed with the board -- tho;e of
Agustin Olvera, Pabld de 1la &uérra, Marino G. Vallejo, Antonio
Harf; Lugo, Pedro Loéez; Jose/Mari; Covarrubias,‘Alegis Godey,
Miguel de 1la G;erra, and Manuel Feliz, Thesp'gentlemen tqld
of_their-knowledge of the rancho and of its occupation agd ﬁse by
fhe Mission and by the del Valle family.

Sample comments:

From venerable, 80-yecar-old Lugo: "I have visited it -
a great many times. There was a corral there placed by the Mission.
It was abeut the year 1813 or 1814." .

From- famed frontiersman Godey, hunter for John C.

~y s

?regont, and friend of the indians:'"l am acquainted with this

tract of land bf riding over it at different times... I first N
knew the Rancho in 1849 when I stopped at the house and pﬁrchésed
cattle there... I.ém also well acquainted with most Sf the Indian

tribes."

From Mayordomo Feliz: "Don Antonio del Valle placed on
- . "

the Rancho... some head of cattle and in the same year [1839] he
went therc to live with his fanily."
[?hc&significant renarks of Pedro Ld@ez and of Pazablo
| . '

de la Guerra have already been referred to.)

19
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The board azpproved the del Valle title, and the auto-
matic ‘appeal to the United St;tes Court was dismissed. Many
. years passed beforé the Surveyor General of the Unitea States got
around to making a final survey of the rancho. That was in June,

" 1874. This survey showed it to contain 48,611.88 acres. The

-

survey plat Qaéjadvertised in San Franciscp's Alta California for
four weeks and in,the Los Angéles Star for the same period.
bFinaily on February 12, 1875, the United States issued its pateﬁt
to Jacoba Felis, et al, to be recorded ‘in the Office'o} the County
Recoerder of Los Angeles County, | -

!
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1858

Butterfield stages roll through Rancho
San Francisco

Swiﬂging,‘twisting, and jolting, the first overian@
stage passed through the Newhall area in October of 1858. The
'pohnding hoofs of the six horses kept té the rough,.rain—warped
roéd through San Francisquito Capyon, the’rqadithat had been used
since earliest. days in getting to and through éhe San Joaquin
Valley from San Pedro anerosVAngelcéf -It had geen sent out from
.St.'LQuis, Missouri, by John Butterfield, preside;t of the Over-
_iand Méil Company, and ig was on its way to Fort Téjon aﬁd points

north, via King's Station, Widow Smith's, and, out of the canyon,

Elizabeth Lake. -
"Eight miles from San Fernando we changed horses again,"

wrote Waterman L;_Ormsﬁy, special cofrespondent of the New York
Berald vho traveled as the only through passenger on this epochél

-

trip ... "From this point the road leads through the San Francisco
T -

[Ftapcisquito]Caﬁon, twvelve miles long, the small jagged peaks of

~the mountains on either side looking much like rows of upturned

human profiles.” (Quotation from The Butterfield Mail, edited By

Lyle H. Wright and Josephine M. Bynum, published by The Huntiﬁgton
Library, 1942 . - ' .

Thc_iife of Butterfield's overland stage#,waé only frém
1858 to 1861, but the stages were significant in opening the way
for later stéging‘operations including the‘mule ffcight teams of

21
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Phincas Banning. Most intetpéting is the fact that thé stages
folloﬁed in part "El Camino Vicjo,ﬁ used since 2t least 1800 by
saddle animals and for freighting by ox-drawn carretas‘betwccn San
Pedro Bay and the San Francisco Bay -area by way of thg Saﬁ_Joaquin
Valley; lThi§ statement comes from Don Jesus Lg;ez, cattle boss of

the Tejon Ranch for fifty years, whose grandfather engaged in this

freighting by carretas--as quoted by F. F. Lafga'in his El Camino

-y l :
Viejo A Los Angeles, 1936.

0y .
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1861

Ygnacio del Valle completes the building =
of a hacienda at Camnulos, after salvaging
his interest in Rancho San Francisco.

For a few brief years following fhe‘Gold Rush of 1@49,
captieOWning Tancheros prospered, inclﬁding the owners of Rancho
San Francisco. The boom eﬁéed in 1857, h9wever, with the demand
and prices for.Southern California‘ﬁeef droéping drastically.

Most rancheros had overspent themselves and were in debt. The

del Valle family, which held undivided interests in Rancho San

Francisco, was in financial trouble. Dona Jacoba and her husband

Jose,Salazar had begun borrowing money and signing mortgages at

the current high rates of interest. anacio.del Valle, a cautious .’
man, could not prevent other members of the family.and their ;n—
divided interestg from becoming entangled.

ihe'gpshqtidf these difficulties was foreclosure by ;
William Wolfskill, the principal creditor, who generously workéd!
ocut a pian with Don Ygnacio to égve the latter's interest. At”the »
foreélpsure_sale Wolfskill, who haé agreed to ?ay off the other
creditors, bid tﬁé aﬁount owned him and got title to.the whole

rancho. Immediately, as agreed, he deeded, a five-elevenths

interest to Ygnacio and included a small parcel that had belonged

. : : / -
to the latter's brother Jose. The Salazars were now out of the

picture, and Ygnacio was free of the burden of their debts -- all

as explained in careful detail by Ruth ¥Waldo Newhall in her The

koY -
. .
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Newhall Ranch <1{é 58) .

| Don Ygnacio could not go ahead with his Camulo; plan,
which he haé started iﬁ 1854 with a four-room house for the foreman,
surrounded by vineyards and orchards; The nane Camulog was derived
from an Indian raﬂcberia of that namé. Don Ygnacio and his wife,
Isabel frequently stayed at the main ranch house while establish-
ing théir own. .

As completed in 1861, the hacignda was a twenty-room
adobe structufe -—- home aﬁd ranch headquartefs ~- with w;de
verandas around a central patio. bestingd to remain in the del
‘Valie family, several generations of fhem, until 1954; Camulos is
‘referred to usually as "Rancho Camulos™. though it ig éarf of
Rancho San Francisco. Its 1340—aéré area was retained by Ygnacio

when the rest of the rancho was being sold in the 1860s. .
Camulos remains to this da§ one of the most distinctiﬁé;
and best preserved baciéndas of‘éancho days in California, comp%ete
with a charming.famil§ chaéel. The del Valles took zealous pridé'
not onlf in the.productivity of the land but .in preserving the >
traditions, customs, and hosPitality of the rancho period. ~A-
light burneé coniinoﬁslj on the altar of the chapgl; and once a
month a priest camerfo Felebrate Mass. The establishment sefved

[

Helen Hunt Jackson weil in research for her novel Ramona, In its
:heyday about 2 hundred people lived af Camulos. Today the present
owner, Mrs. ﬁary kubel Burger, maintai;é ;he ranch hduse as he;
-home. Tt has a citrus setting, and the buildings are almost ﬁiéden

by trees. S .
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0il exictement hits Rancho San Francisco

Rancho San Franc;sco became Thomas R: Bard's %n 1865,
when William Wolfskill, Ygnacio del Valle, and Jose/del Valle
executed a deed to this energetic young newcomer to California.
Bérd was the nephew and re%%esentative of Thomas A. Scott, presi-
dént of the Pennsylvania Railrpad.S chtt wished to expand hié oil
interestsuinto the promising ocil territory of which é Yale gcolpéist,

A frofessof Bénjamin Silliman, jr;, had ﬁade glowing repbrts. In

that year most Caiifordia ranchos could be bought at bargain prices
. . N . - . L {
for the cattle business had been wrecked by three rainless years,

beginning in_1862; Rancho San Francisco, a sufferer like other

ranchos, was bought by Bard for $53,320 cash, in a deal in which

Camulos was sold back to Don Ygnacio for a small sum.

Bard was not buying for himself, but for one of his

e

"uncle's cor?qratioﬁs ~- Philadelphia & California Petroleunm

7

" Company -- which almost immediately took title. Bard himself was
: : : . »

later to pay a leading role in Ventura Counfy,(which was carved'out_
of Santa Barbara County in 1873) and to serve the states a;ya'
United States senator. |

/ The oil excitement in the Santa Clara Valley was pre-
mature and by the early 1870s the Philadelphia and California

FPetroleun Compény_was heavily mortgaged and up for sale or fore-

closure.

N

25 ¢

"o
d



N T T

L3N
When purchasers Chérlcs Fernald and J. F, Richards of
Santa Barbara failed te make payment under a foreclosure sale, a

new buyer bf»the nane of Newhall appeared on the scene.

™
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. 1875

Henry Mayo Newhall acquires the greater
part of Rancho San Francisco

‘For $90,000 Henry Mayo Newhall acquired all of Rancho
San Francisco, excepting Don Ygnacio's Camulos and a few small
parcels sold by the oil compﬁny. The deed was-dated January 15,
1875. The sraller parcéls‘(other_tﬂan Camulos) would later be
acquired aé théy became available.
| \ Henry Mayo Newhall, a.man of energy and of extra-
ordin;ry business abili%y, had arrived in San F}ancispo in 1850
as a golé—seeker. After a few futilc weeks in the mines, pe vas,

back in San Francisco, to cast his fortune with that city -and to

enter the auction business, which then was the foundation of

trade. He began immediatély to be successful in the buying and

.avctioning of shiploads of merchandise. Presently he was able to

buy a lot in the fashionable South Park district on Rincon Hill,’ :
to build a two-story, New England style, brick house, and to

L)

bring out and install there his bride im the fall of 1852.> Newvhall

- €

branched into wholesaling, into insurance, into the railroad
business, and--at the opportune time--into the buying of real
estate. He bought San Francisco city lots and, beginning in 1871,
when heavily burdened rancheros were everyvhere giving up or
losing their titles, he acquired his first rancho. In less than a2
decade‘he owned six ranchcz, the area totalling 143,000 cares;.
Réncho‘San Franciscﬁ‘offcred Newhall his greatest

27
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‘
interest, in part beccausec the Southern Pacific was aboué to extend
its tracks gcross'its acreage. Early in 1874 train service had
been available from Los Angeles to San Fernando. Sixteen months
were required to complete.a tunnel.ﬁorth through the San Férnando
Mountains. Meanﬁhile gangs of men, building s&uth through thé ;
San Joaquin Vailey, had reached Soledad Cényon; On September}S,
1876 a goldén spike was driven to celébrape the linking by rail
of Northern and Southern Califorﬁiﬁ; the‘céremony taking place gt
the station of Lang. Henceforth the markéts of San Francisco ah@
the: cast ﬁould be opén.tofSouthern California. |

Henry Mayo Newhall built atstation which becamc the
" nucleus of a town, appropriately named ¥ewhall by the Sbuéhe;n
Pacific. The station's original iocation waé at the present si%e:‘
of the town of Saugusk~~ named for the birthplace in Méssachusetts'
of founder Newhallﬂ Late% it was moved. "At Newhall, town lots
were put on fhé.markep; a hotel was built, and across>from it a?
.squafe was plaqted yitﬁ trees. Passengers bound for Santa Barbare

got off the trainm at Newhall and went by stage through the Santa

-~ [4

Clara Valley to Ventura and points north.
"Newhall liked the ranch life and favored it for his

sons," wrote Ruth Waldo. Newhall in her definitive account of the

Newhall family aAd activities, The Newhall Ranch, to which reference
‘has already peen~made.‘ "In the autumn of 1878 rénch-WOrk began in
earnest when Newhall and his son.[Henry Gfegory] set.up their
headquarters in a frame house that had been builtfto replace the
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ﬂgi Valle's o01ld adobg, destroyed by an earthquakc...Hc-hired a
motley crew of Mexicans, Ind;ans, and Chinese...Tﬁe.first year they
plowed five hundred ac;es of openland...Encouraged by the result

of the summer harves;, Ne@hall moved his men down the rivér to the
west end of the ranch...There they plantpd corn, alfalfa, and flax,
as well as tropical and subg;opical plants such as sugar caﬂe,

bamboo, and citrus fruits..."

Speaking of the destroyed del Valle ranch house, Arthur
Woodward, chiéf curator of history, Los‘Angeles County Museumn,
together with Arthur Perkins and others,,excavated-the adobe ruins
vin May, 1933. loodwvard reported the building to be 107 feet long
and approximately 23 feet wide, to have had a tiled roof'and a‘
tiled floor, and to have been "built on the south bank of the
Santa Clara river in the year 1804 as a granary for Mission Sén
Fernando." Later, after'1933, "vandals tore out the tile of the
flooring and dtpolishgd the remaining fragments of the building&i
_The site is about one'milé from Castaic Junction and is on pro;

perty owned by the Newhall Land and Farming Company.” (Quota;

tions are from The Jayhawkers' Oath and other Sketches , 1949;

selected and edited by Woodward.)



$20 to $25 a head. - . . - -

1883

The Newhall Land and TFarming Company is
organized, a corporation which ultimately
develops an expansive program for Rancho-
San Francisco, the latter becoming "the
Newhall Ranch"

While riding over ﬁancho San Francisco one March day
in 1882, Henry Mayo Newhall‘éuffered injugy thn his horse stumbled
and fell, Newhall was taken to his ﬁome'in San Francisco where heﬂu
died on March 13 at the age of 56} Settlement of the estate took

over a year, with 143,000 acres of California ranch 1ahd.bassing

 to the second generation of Newhalls.

At this time The Newhall Land and_F;rming Company was
formed, with title to Rancho San Francisco being transferred by f'j
the.widow and the five sons to this corporation. ﬁenry, the eldesE_
son, was'assignéd active supérvisioﬁ.ovér this ranch--to be i ‘
succeeded in later years by Walter Newhali.. Stock—raiéing gecaqe
the pfincipal acpivgty vhen carly végtures in wheat-raising préiéd
unprofitable. Hérses‘brought $50 each in Saq Fpancisco and cat;les

On the death in 1880 of anécio del Valle, Camulos had
been left to the widow, Dona Isabel del Valle anq the six children,
the ranch being encumbered by a $15,000 mortgage in favor of Henry
Mayo Ngwﬂall, Directors of the Newhall corporation agreed to
téar up this o;érdue mortgage if the del Valles would survey the
boundary between Canulos and the rest of Rancho San Francisco and

3
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establish 1t as a straight line. This was done, the del Valles
getting in the process more acreage and beconing free of the

mortgage. R;»FL del Valle, son of Don Ygnzcio, beczme head of

rtheffamiiy and was prominent in Los Angeles as an attorney'and in

social, business anﬁ political circles.‘ ' ; )
‘Raného San Francigpp had histbric ups and downs, There

vere intervais of mismaéagement, wars, squatgerism, depresgion, and

sometimes physical diséster. Thé‘éreatest disaster was caused by

the bursting on March 13, 1928 of the St. Francis Dam, located in

San Francisquito Canyon. The waters released flooded the Santa

Clara River, and brought about the loss of more than 400 lives,

property damage.estimated at $30,000,000, with 1500 persoﬂs left

homeless.

Rancho San Francisco became known as the Newhall Ranch,,

with the thixd geheration of Newhalls taking charge. Atholl

Mc Bean, an experienced executive, the grandson-in-law of the

-founder of the Newhall family fortunes, was elected president'in‘r

1935. Expert consultants and managefs were called in, and new
corp;rate policies adopted. -Instead of undergoing s}ow liquida-
tion, the family.coﬁpany'became a corporation organized to produce,
develop, and grow. | |

0il leases and occasional crops began to bring in some

inceome from the .ranch, in addition to that from the raising of

cattle. The Newhalls followed the del Valle example; and planted

citrus orchards. = Actually an enormocus acreage came to be given

~

-

over to irrigated crops. Ultimately, too, with deep-drilling
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techniques perfected, there yas'a rush for oil leased oﬁ the
Newhall Ranch, and each yearioil pfoduction increased.

In 1963 Thomas L. Lowe, who had been executive vice
president of -Pacific Mutual Life-Insurance Company, supceéded
GcorgéiBhshell as ﬁresident. Bushell had been geherai manager
and latér.prgéfdent. Atholl McBean became and reméins chairman
of'tﬁe board. Expansion, mecﬁanization, and the development of
ﬁafér resources and agriculture continued. The Newhall Ranch

became an empire of oil derricks, citrus groves, irrigated crops,

T
i

and excellent rangeland. o ' : o

The Newhall Land and Farming Company, owned principally
by the descendants of Henry Mayo Newhall, assumed stature as one

. » . '
of the outstanding western corporations of its type. Its manage-

ment was ready for a new program.
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—

California Land Company is created to
"develop and carry out plans for a new
community; Valencia

i
i
i
1

Four thousand acres located in the easterly section of
the 44,000-acre Newhall Ranch were selected for the development of
a master-planned community, one to arise in a truly Californian

setting of curving hills and oak-dotted valley.

’

This community, as planned, has as its nucleus a major
ﬁcity center, surrounded by villages with their own.centers and-
neighborhood clusters, t&gether with provision for educatioﬁal,ff‘fc

. recreational, and industrial areas and ﬁsagés.'
er . Population pressure from all sides of the Newhall Rancg ‘
}‘ and the exéansion 0of an impressive freeway systen, wit£ Valencig

as the crossroad .of automotive commerce, made this program logical.

Spééialized consultants in the planning of Valencia--a
name suggested by Valencia; Spain--had worked two years. in colla-

boration with the architectual and urban planning fir= of Victor

Gruen Associates and with engineering experts.

.

The Newhall Ranch alvays has had tremendous supplies
of underground wgtér available for irrigation. Projected wvater
needs for Va}encia will. be taken care of by the Valencia Water
'Cbmpany's present deep;weil pumping capacity. Augmegting these
resources, a sgbrage reservoir at Castaic (part of the giant

Feather River Project authorized by the California legislature in
. . ] N ‘p

’
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1951) will be holding northe?ly.wétcrs stréaming through an
aquedﬁct into the érea by 1971.
Scheduled for opening in September of 1969 bﬂ a 60-acre
- site Just north of;Valenciafis the California Institute of the
Arts. ‘This school; conceivéd by Walt Disney, began with the merger
in 1961 of tgé’Chouinard Art-Institute and the Los Angeles

S Conservatory of Music.

August 20, 1967

- Valencia is dedicaﬁéd

-t

"Highlighted by the ceremonial and symﬁolical passing
of title to the land from the King of Spain, thfough the various
owvnerships to the residents of the new community, Valencia was

given an auspicious and festive start on Sunday affernoon,

August 20, 1967.
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